

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



Mission, Vision, Constitution & Bylaws

Society Act

Certificate of Incorporation June 7, 1994

Number S-32070

Constitution and Bylaws of:
Chilliwack Minor Lacrosse Association
(Amended Draft November 12, 2014)

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



Mission:

The purpose of the CMLA is to promote the game of Lacrosse through skill development, quality leadership, understanding of teamwork, fair play, good health and sportsmanship, in a fun and positive environment for all Children, Members and affiliates.

The CMLA is committed to encouraging personal excellence in each child, regardless of their level of skill, through enlisting the best coaches and volunteers in Chilliwack and surrounding areas.

It also the goal of the CMLA to help players increase individual self-esteem, maintain dignity and respect for all.

Vision

The vision of the CMLA is as follows:

- To grow our association by promoting the benefits of Lacrosse being a fun and healthy activity.
- To market Lacrosse as an exciting sport for both players and spectators
- To develop future Junior, WLA, NLL, NCAA, and scholarship players
- To develop future CMLA and community leaders
- To encourage parental involvement in volunteer roles

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



Constitution

- 1.) The name of the society is Chilliwack Minor Lacrosse Association (Hereto referred to as CMLA)
- 2.) The objectives of the society are as follows:
 - a.) To foster and promote the game of Lacrosse subject to the rules and regulations of the British Columbia Lacrosse Association (Hereto referred to as the BCLA)
 - b.) To organize and administer teams consisting of youth primarily residing in The Municipality of Chilliwack
- 3.) In the event that the association should be dissolved, the remaining assets, after payments of all debts and liabilities, shall be turned over to a recognized Non Profit Organization that operates in the Municipality of Chilliwack for the benefit of the residents of Chilliwack. This provision is unalterable.
- 4.) The society shall not operate for the purpose of financial gain.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



Bylaws

Article 1 – Interpretation

- 1.1) CMLA means Chilliwack Minor Lacrosse Association
- 1.2) BCLA means British Columbia Lacrosse Association
- 1.3) CLA means the Canadian Lacrosse Association
- 1.4) Ex-Comm means elected, voting executive committee
- 1.5) Executive Member means a member who is elected to an executive committee position
- 1.6) Director means an appointed non-voting member of the executive committee
- 1.7) Director at Large means a Director Appointed by the Executive Committee who has executive voting rights
- 1.8) Society Act means The Society Act of British Columbia.
- 1.9) Lacrosse Season means January 1st to December 31st of any calendar year
- 1.10) The definitions under the Society Act, on the date the CMLA Bylaws come in to effect, apply to the CMLA Bylaws.
- 1.11) In the CMLA bylaws words importing a male person include a female person and words importing a female person include a male person and those words includes a corporation; words importing singular include the plural and vice versa.
- 1.12) The CMLA is a non-reporting Society
- 1.13) Calendar Year for Executive and Director Assignments is from October 1st to September 30th.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



Article 2 – Affiliation

- 2.1) The CMLA is affiliated with the following governing boards:
 - a.) CLA
 - b.) BCLA
 - c.) LMMLC (means Lower Mainland Minor Lacrosse Commission)
- 2.2) The CMLA Ex-Comm shall comply with all applicable bylaws, rules and regulations of the above governing bodies
- 2.3) Upon receiving proper notice the CMLA shall arrange proper representation by 1 or more Executive Members at all regular, special and annual general meetings of the above governing bodies

Article 3 – Membership

- 3.1) There shall be 2 classes of members:
 - a.) General Member
 - b.) Life Member
- 3.2) The following conditions of membership shall apply:
 - a.) General Members include any parent or legal guardian, who is the age of majority, who enters their contact information on their child's registration form for the current Lacrosse season.
 - i.) There shall be 1 vote per parent/guardian of the registered child (children) up to a maximum of 2 total votes.
 - a.) The term of general membership shall be annual, commencing upon the payment of the annual membership fee which is included in the child's registration fee for the current Lacrosse Season. Or; if no child is a registered player, the term of membership commences on a payment of a fee of \$5.00 by January 31st of the calendar year. Approval of membership will be at the discretion of the Ex-Comm.
 - i.) *EXEMPTION*: Exemption on time limits and fees shall be at the discretion of the Ex-Comm
- 3.3) General Members in good standing can also be registered and certified as coaches and officials (to preclude discrimination against official status in other duties in the league)

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



3.4) Lifetime Membership may be bestowed as an honour on any current or past General Member.

3.4.1) Prospective Lifetime Members must be nominated by a General Member prior to an Annual General Meeting with a description of why they should be inducted as a Lifetime Member.

a.) Lifetime Membership shall be bestowed upon those nominees who are confirmed by a majority vote of the Ex-Comm.

b.) Lifetime members may attend and participate in all CMLA General Meetings and shall retain the voting rights of a General Member

3.5) All members are in good standing upon payment of annual registration or membership dues. *Exemption:* Lifetime Member

3.6) A member, other than a Lifetime Member, ceases to be in good standing upon:

a.) failure to pay registration or membership dues no more than 90 days after final registration

b.) failure to pay a debt outstanding to CMLA for more than 90 days

3.7.) Every member must consistently abide by the CMLA Constitution and Bylaws, and those of the affiliated associations.

3.8) The expulsion of any member must be done in accordance with the policies of the CLA and BCLA.

3.9) Any member ceases to be a member upon:

a.) Delivery of resignation in writing to the secretary of the CMLA

b.) Death

c.) In the case of a corporation, upon its dissolution or bankruptcy

d.) Failing to renew membership

e.) Expulsion

Article 4 – General Meetings

4.1) General meetings include the Annual General Meeting or any Special General Meeting. All General Members shall receive notice of the Annual General Meeting and any Special General Meeting, and they may participate at their discretion.

a.) excluded from general membership notice:

i.) regular ex-comm meetings

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



- ii.) emergency ex-comm meetings
- iii.) special ex-comm meetings

4.2.) Every General Meeting, other than an Annual General Meeting, is a Special General Meeting.

4.3) There shall be no quorum for Annual General Meetings or Special General Meetings

4.3.1) The quorum for ex-comm meetings shall be:

- a.) 4 out of 6 voting elected ex-comm members
- b.) if 4 out of 6 voting elected members are not present
 - i.) no resolution shall be passed
 - ii.) motions shall be deferred to next ex-comm meeting

4.4) Subject to the BC Society Act and the constitution and by-laws of the CMLA, Robert's Rules of Order shall be used at every CMLA meeting.

4.5) Each General Member in good standing shall receive notice of, and may attend and vote at all general meetings. Each such voting member shall be entitled to one (1) vote at such meetings.

4.6) Minutes shall be recorded at each ex-comm General Meeting. Once accepted and ratified by the ex-comm the minutes shall be made available to regular members by:

- a.) posting on CMLA website in private members area
 - i.) linked to CMLA social media sites
- b.) email to regular members
- c.) at any time at the request of a regular member via email
 - i.) regular members are entitled to request and receive historic minutes

4.7) The Annual General Meeting shall take place once per year, in September, at a date and time deemed appropriate by the ex-comm

4.8) The CMLA secretary shall deliver first notice of AGM no less than 30 days prior to its convening. The secretary shall include a call for proposed amendments to this constitution and bylaws, prior to any AGM. Regular members shall submit any proposed amendments to the constitution and bylaws to the secretary by the date specified.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



4.9) The CMLA Secretary shall deliver second notice of AGM, including any proposed amendments to this Constitution and Bylaws, a minimum of 14 days prior to any AGM.

4.10) Prior to election of directors, two scrutineers shall be nominated and elected from the general membership to count ballots if required. Scrutineers shall count ballots together to ensure the accuracy of the count. Scrutineers shall abstain from any vote to which they have been elected to collect and count ballots. All ballots shall be destroyed by the scrutineers after vote has been ratified.

4.11) CMLA Special General Meeting may be called at any time by:

- a.) A majority vote by Ex-Comm
- b.) A General Member by way of petition comprised of a minimum of 20% of the General Membership. The petition shall be in written form and mailed to the Office of the Secretary. The date of the receipt of the petition shall be deemed to be the date it is received by the Ex-Comm
 - i.) The meeting as petitioned shall be convened within 21 days of the receipt of the petition.

4.12) When a SGM has been properly requested and such meeting has not been held within the prescribed time the General Members, or Directors, who originated the request may themselves convene an Emergency General Meeting, in accordance with the provisions of the Society Act.

4.13) A Special General Meeting shall be chaired by the President or Vice-President. If unavailable, or in cases of conflict, a SGM shall be chaired by an individual on the Ex-Comm as voted by the General Members present.

4.14) An Emergency General Meeting shall be chaired by the President or Vice-President. If unavailable, or in cases of conflict, an Emergency General Meeting shall be chaired by a representative of the BCLA.

4.15) Voting shall be by show of hands.

4.16) Any General Member may request a vote by ballot. In this case, the Chair can accept the request or, if not in agreement, can put it to a vote of the General Members in attendance.

4.17) Proxy votes shall not be accepted in any case.

4.18) Voting on amendments to the CMLA Constitution and Bylaws shall only be done by Special Resolution at a SGM called for such a purpose; or at the AGM.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



4.19) Amendments to the CMLA Constitution and Bylaws shall be done by Ordinary Resolution, at an AGM, requiring fifty per cent (50%) plus one (1) approval of voting members in attendance, or by Special Resolution, at a SGM, requiring seventy-five per cent (75%) approval of voting members in attendance.

Article 5 – Executive Committee

5.1) The property and affairs of the CMLA shall be managed by the Ex-Comm who shall be vested full control of the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures of CMLA.

5.1.1) The Ex-Comm shall be responsible to pass a budget for the CMLA by December 15th of each calendar year.

5.1.2) The Ex-Comm may not make rules or regulations governing operations which are inconsistent with the policies of the Provincial Government, the provisions of these Constitution and Bylaws or of any statute or the regulations passed thereunder.

5.1.3) The Ex-Comm is not authorized to mortgage, sell, lease, transfer or change the use of the real and personal property including naming and branding operated by the CMLA without having first obtained the approval of the General members by Special Resolution by 75% vote.

5.2) Any general member shall have the right to run for any position on the Ex-Comm as long as they are members in good standing. Members shall have the right to resign from one Ex-Comm position in order to run for another Ex-Comm position.

5.2.1) Elected positions

The following are Ex-Comm positions that are elected by the general membership.

a.) President

i.) term of 2 years elected in even number years

b.) First Vice President – Operations

i.) term of 2 years elected in odd number years

c.) Second Vice President – Development

i.) term of 2 years elected in even number years

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



- d.) Third Vice President – Marketing
 - i.) term of 2 years elected on odd number years
- e.) Treasurer
 - i.) term of 2 years elected in even number years
- f.) Secretary
 - i.) term of 2 years elected in odd number years

5.2.2) Appointed positions

The following are positions that are appointed by the Ex-Comm as Directors:

- a.) Registrar
 - i.) term of 1 year
- b.) Equipment Manager
 - i.) term of 1 year
- c.) Head Referee
 - i.) term of 1 year
- d.) Head Coach
 - i.) term of 1 year
- e.) Web administrator
 - i.) term of 1 year
- f.) Scheduler
 - i.) term of 1 year
- g.) Past President/Director at Large
 - i.) term of 1 year
- h.) Director of Media Relations (optional position)
 - i.) Term of 1 year. Serves the CMLA as requested by the Ex Comm only. There is no term to serve.

5.3) Schedule of Ex-Comm voting rights:

The following Ex-Comm members shall retain voting rights on matters under the authority of the Ex-Comm.

- a.) First Vice President – Operations

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



- b.) Second Vice President – Development
- c.) Third Vice President – Marketing
- d.) Treasurer
- e.) Secretary
- f.) President
 - i.) President shall only vote in the event of a tie.
- g.) Past President/Director at Large

5.3.1) The appointed Ex-Comm members shall not have executive voting rights in Ex-Comm matters. They shall retain their general members voting rights in all general votes.

a.) *Exemption:* Past President/Director at Large shall retain executive voting rights in Ex-Comm matters.

5.4) The position of Past President is limited to a term of one calendar year.

5.4.1) In the years when there is an immediate past President the Ex-Comm will appoint the Past President, if he or she consents to the appointment, as a Director for the term of one year. The Past President shall operate in an advisory capacity to the current President and shall provide assistance at the request of the current President. The Past President shall have a vote in meetings of the Ex-Comm. In the years when there is no immediate past President, or should the past President not consent to the appointment, the Ex-Comm shall vote upon and appoint a Director At Large who shall assume the responsibility of the position of Past President.

5.5) Where within the term a person ceases to be an Ex-Comm or Director member for any cause:

a.) A Nomination Committee, comprised of Ex-Comm members, shall go through proper steps to nominate a General Member for that position which shall be ratified by a majority vote of the remaining Ex-Comm members. Any person filling such vacancy shall serve only until the next AGM regardless of odd or even year.

b.) No act or proceeding of the Ex-Comm shall be made invalid only by reason of there being less than the prescribed number of Ex-Comm members in office.

5.6) If no successor is elected for an Ex-Comm position, the position shall remain vacant until such time as the Ex-Comm appoints a General Member to the position. Any General Member filling such a position shall serve only until the next AGM regardless of odd or even year.

Article 6 – Duties of the Ex-Comm

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



6.1) Each Ex-Comm member has only one vote regardless of any other positions or titles held in the CMLA.

6.2) **The President** shall have the responsibility to conduct day to day operations of the CMLA within the guidelines of the CMLA's Bylaws and Constitution, CLA, BCLA and the LMMLC. The President Shall:

- a.) Supervise other Ex-Comm and Directors in the execution of their duties
- b.) Attend or appoint someone to attend all meetings of CMLA's governing bodies
- c.) Chair any CMLA Discipline Committees.
- d.) Chair a meeting at the beginning of each Lacrosse Season reviewing the responsibilities for CMLA directors and other officials.

6.3) **First Vice President of Operations** shall be responsible for Executive Planning, working with the Facilities and Equipment Managers and Operations of the CMLA. This position reports to the President and shall:

- a.) Work with other Ex-Comm members and Directors to produce a yearly budget, which shall include: a savings plan, projected expenditures and a contingency fund.
- b.) Work with the Treasurer to ensure all funds are allocated and distributed properly for gaming purposes.
- c.) Seek the assistance of a professional auditor when necessary.
- d.) Be responsible for overseeing the activities of CMLA Directors and other officials involved in the operation of Lacrosse Season and tournaments.
- e.) Be responsible for delivering member information on Team BC
- f.) Function as the Liaison to governing boards as it pertains matters of facilities and amenities.
- g.) Work with the Scheduler and attend any user group meetings concerning facilities bookings
- f.) Oversee the activities and duties of the Equipment Manager.
- g.) Make presentations to the Municipality or other affiliated Associations based on the needs of the CMLA concerning facilities or equipment; or assign a Director, General Member to do so.
- h.) Complete and present an annual activity report to the President at the AGM.

6.4.) **Second Vice President of Development** shall be responsible for the management of the Coaching Programmes and recruitment of Coaches and Trainers.

- a.) Oversee the Head Coach creating and maintaining a skills development programme for all players

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



b.) Be responsible for seeking out and presenting to the General Members potential training opportunities that can benefit individual players, coaches, referees and trainers.

c.) Organize and host locally any training opportunity approved by the Ex-Comm that can benefit individual players, teams, coaches, referees or trainers.

d.) Oversee and manage the activities of the Head Coach and Head Referee

e.) Complete and present an annual activity report to the President at the AGM.

6.5) Third Vice President of Marketing shall be responsible for advertising and increasing public interest in the CMLA. This position reports to the President and shall:

a.) Be responsible, with the input of the Ex-Comm, for arranging sponsorship, fundraising, marketing, public relations, promotions and media relations for the CMLA

b.) Maintain the CMLA Trophy Case

c.) With the assistance of the Secretary, arrange team and individual photo day.

d.) Be responsible to manage the inventory, acquisition and sales planning of all CMLA apparel sold to General Members, Players and the public. Shall also be responsible to keep track of all financial transactions pertaining to the acquisition and sale of CMLA Apparel and provide such records to the President and Treasurer at regular intervals.

e.) Convene and Chair a committee responsible for the planning and oversight of any Awards Ceremonies or any Awards Celebrations.

f.) Seek out Corporate and Personal Sponsors who will benefit the CMLA with either financial or other resources.

g.) Complete and present an annual activity report to the President at the AGM.

6.6) The Treasurer shall be responsible for the care, control and custody of all finances and financial records, and be one of three Ex-Comm members with signing authority of all financial accounts. The Treasurer reports to the President and shall:

a.) Submit, at the request of the President, a Criminal Record Check

b.) Be the Custodian of all Funds, Securities, Evidence of Indebtedness and other valuable financial documents

c.) Deposit all funds in the name of and the credit to the CMLA to the Financial Institution, which holds the financial accounts of the CMLA and no other.

d.) Keep an accurate record of all monies received, accounts receivable and accounts payable. Records shall be maintained for a period of seven years.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



- e.) Draft and present a current financial report at every Ex-Comm meeting.
- f.) Draft and present a complete financial statement including a balance sheet, statement of current assets, accounts receivable, accounts payable with a copy of the operating budget for the same calendar year. To be presented to all General Members at the AGM.

6.7) The Secretary shall record and maintain meeting minutes taken at all Ex-Comm meetings and any AGM or SGM. This position reports to the President and shall:

- a.) Prepare and distribute all correspondence and notices on the behalf of the CMLA. This includes, but is not limited to:
 - i.) Annual General Meetings
 - ii.) Special General Meetings
 - iii.) Public notices or notices to the General Membership
- b.) Maintain a full and complete record of current meeting minutes and upon acceptance and ratification of minutes shall make them available to the General Membership.
- c.) Ensure any reports or statements or any other documents that may be required by the CLA, BCLA, LMMLC or other governing bodies, are filed as required within allotted timeframes.
- d.) Prepare and maintain an accurate list of all members of the CMLA.

6.8) **Registrar** shall be responsible for the registration of all players in CMLA. This position reports to the President and shall:

- a) Be responsible for the records of all registered players and for providing proper registration information, according to schedule, to BCLA, LMMLC and to the CMLA Ex Comm. All records shall be kept in the CMLA office.
- b) Work with the Treasurer, and turn over all registration or tournament fees collected directly to the Treasurer, within 48 hours of collection.
- c) Maintain an updated record of all General Members and their contact information.

6.9) **Equipment Manager** shall be responsible for inventory and maintenance of all CMLA equipment. This position reports to the First Vice President and shall:

- a) Be responsible for distribution of all necessary equipment at the beginning of the season and for collection of that same equipment at the end of the season.
- b) Ensure proper storage of equipment during the off-season.
- c) Provide an accurate inventory of all equipment before the start of the season to the Ex-Comm.
- d) Perform any necessary repairs at any point before and during the season.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



e) Purchase any equipment and supplies deemed necessary and approved by the Ex Comm.

6.10) **Head Referee** shall be responsible for assigning referees to officiate games during the lacrosse season. This position reports to the 2nd Vice President of Development.

6.11) **Web Administrator** shall be responsible for promotion of CMLA activities to the General Membership and to the local community through the use of the CMLA website and through social media. This position reports to the Secretary and President and shall:

a) Disseminate information approved by the Ex-Comm via the CMLA website or social media.

b) Maintain CMLA website and other social media outlets, under the direction of the Ex-Comm.

6.12) **Past President** shall perform duties and carry out responsibilities designated by the President, and shall act in an advisory capacity when requested by any member of the Ex Comm.

6.13) **Director-at-Large** shall assume all the responsibilities of the position of Past President (6.12).

6.14) **Director of Media Relations** shall act as liaison between the CMLA and all media entities. This position reports to the President. Unless the director holds a membership in the CMLA this position has no voting rights.

Article 7 - Meetings of the Executive Committee

7.1) Regular meetings of the Ex-Comm shall be held once a month and at a regularly scheduled time and place to be chaired by the CMLA President. There may be no regular meeting of the Ex-Comm in August of any year.

7.2) The Agenda set for meetings may include in camera matters, which shall remain confidential to the Executive Committee. In camera discussion shall be reserved for purposes of protecting the anonymity of a minor, for disciplinary items, or for discussing details sensitive to a member. In camera meetings shall always be held with discretion.

7.3) Ex-Comm meetings shall include all members of the Ex-Comm. Any General or Lifetime member is welcome to attend these meetings.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



7.4) Times, locations and business agenda of any regular meetings of the Ex-Comm shall be posted on the CMLA website. The time and location is subject to change upon majority agreement by the Ex-Comm, with a minimum of seven (7) days notice posted on the CMLA website

7.5) Minutes shall be recorded at each regular meeting of the Ex-Comm. These minutes, once approved, shall be made available to any general member (see section 4.6 (a), (b)).

7.6) Special meetings of the Ex-Comm may be called, when deemed necessary, by the Ex-Comm and shall be chaired by the President or Vice President.

7.7) Times and locations of any Special meetings of the Ex-Comm shall be posted on the CMLA website, with a minimum of seven (7) days notice. The business agenda for any Special meeting must also be posted on the CMLA website unless the business involves in camera discussion.

7.8) Minutes shall be recorded at each Special meeting of the Ex Comm. These minutes, once approved, shall be made available to any general member (see section 4.6 (a), (b)). Any minutes from in camera discussion shall remain confidential to the Ex-Comm and shall not be made available to the General Membership.

7.9) Any Director missing two consecutive meetings may be subject to removal by majority vote of the Ex-Comm.

Article 8 - Meetings of the Committees

8.1) The Ex-Comm shall have power to appoint committees and committee chairs as necessary. Members of any committee shall be approved by the Ex-Comm. Members may be drawn from the General Membership or Lifetime Members.

8.2) Committee meetings shall be conducted, when necessary, to carry out CMLA business prescribed by the Ex-Comm. These meetings shall be chaired by the appointed committee chair and shall be conducted within a timeframe laid out by the Ex-Comm.

8.3) Committee meetings shall only be attended by the committee chair, the appointed committee members and by any persons invited by the committee to facilitate the business of the meeting.

8.4) Minutes of the committee meetings shall be recorded and, once approved, shall be provided at, and entered into the minutes of, the next regular meeting of the Ex-Comm.

Article 9 - Finances of the CMLA

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



9.1) The CMLA may raise, or secure payment of, monies in such manner and amount as shall be sanctioned by a resolution of the Ex-Comm.

9.2) No borrowing of monies shall be done without sanction of a Special Resolution.

9.3) The CMLA shall maintain a minimum two (2) separate bank accounts:
a) A General Operating Account shall be maintained to be used for general expenses.
b) A Gaming Account shall be maintained and shall be used only for special expenses eligible for payment by the terms of the Government Gaming Grants received by the CMLA.

9.4) The CMLA Treasurer, upon commencement of term shall establish or maintain an existing General Operating Account. The General Operating account shall have three (3) signing officers:

- a) The President
- b) The First Vice President
- c) The Treasurer

Signing officers may be changed should a conflict of interest arise. An alternate signing officer shall be chosen from the Ex Comm. Each bank transaction shall require two (2) signatures as needed.

9.5) The CMLA Treasurer, upon commencement of term, shall establish or maintain a Gaming Account. The Gaming Account shall have three (3) signing officers:

- a) The President
- b) The First Vice President
- c) The Treasurer

Signing officers may be changed should a conflict of interest arise. An alternate signing officer shall be chosen from the Ex Comm. Each bank transaction shall require two (2) signatures as needed. Disbursements from the Gaming Account shall be in accordance with the BC Ministry of Finance, Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch under Community Gaming Grants guidelines and conditions.

<https://www.gaming.gov.bc.ca/grants/docs/cond-cgg.pdf>

9.6) The CMLA shall apply for a Gaming Grant on an annual basis. The First Vice President and Treasurer shall complete the Gaming Grant with input from the Ex-Comm.

CHILLIWACK MINOR LACROSSE ASSOCIATION



9.7) When required by an Ex-Comm member, no more than one time in a calendar month, general operating expenses under \$100.00 may be paid, at the Treasurer's discretion, without a motion to accept and pay. Any subsequent operating expense, or general operating expense over \$100.00, shall require approval through majority vote by the Ex Comm at a regular or Special meeting prior to or post expenditure. All expenditure shall be recorded in the official minutes.

9.8) All excess revenues generated for the CMLA shall be deposited into the General Operating Account.

9.9) CMLA shall, within reason, bear the cost of all office supplies used for official CMLA business. The expenses shall be subject to justification by the Ex-Comm.

9.10) No Ex-Comm member or appointed Director shall be remunerated for holding their post on the Ex Comm or as an appointee in the CMLA. Any reasonable expense incurred, by an Ex-Comm member or an appointed Director, in the course of carrying out the business of the CMLA shall be reimbursed by the CMLA, upon justification of expenses to the Ex-Comm.

9.11) The CMLA shall maintain a contingency fund with a minimum balance of \$5,000 per annum. Any use of monies from the contingency fund must be approved by the Ex-Comm.

Article 10 - CMLA Colours and Team Name

10.1) The recognised official colours of the CMLA shall be predominantly: Green, White, Yellow and Black.

10.2) All teams in the CMLA shall be named and known as Mustangs.

10.3) Official name, colours or logos shall only be changed in accordance with Article 4.19

10.4) Purchases of team apparel, whether for game use or for promotional purposes, shall be made in accordance with Article 4.19, after a minimum of two bids have been tendered.